Golden State Pathways Program
Frequently Asked Questions
The following frequently asked questions (FAQs) aim to provide Golden State Pathways Program (GSPP) grant applicants with information regarding the current GSPP grant awards, the grant qualification results posting timeline and the appeal process. The FAQs should be read in their entirety to understand the background and all aspects of the process moving forward.
Question #1: What was the GSPP Request for Applications process?
Answer #1: Local Educational Agencies (LEAs) applied for GSPP funds through a competitive process known as a Request for Applications (RFA). The RFA reflected the statutory requirements of the GSPP and set out the timeline, eligibility criteria, funding and expenditure guidelines. (California Education Code [EC] sections 53020–53025) The RFA also provided details on the grant application, including the reading and scoring process, application requirements and appeals. The application deadline was March 19, 2024; these are one-time funds. You may find the RFA and related information at the following link: https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/fo/r17/gspppi23rfa.asp.
Question #2: How is GSPP grant eligibility determined?
Answer #2: GSPP grant eligibility is determined through a scoring process that uses a rubric to evaluate each application solely for the purpose of determining grant eligibility (but not funding amount). You may find the rubric at the following link under appendix G: https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/fo/r17/gspppi23rfa.asp.
Applicants who believed their pathway(s) would be successful were eligible to apply for a GSPP grant. Legislation, however, prioritizes applications submitted by high-priority LEAs (defined below) that seek to establish pathway programs in education, including early education and child development; computer science; health care; and science, technology, engineering and mathematics pathways that also focus on climate resilience. (EC Section 53025(f).) These priorities are taken into account in determining an applicant’s final score. For example, an applicant that receives a score of 58 on the rubric and is a high-priority LEA that seeks to establish one pathway program in computer science and one pathway program in health care, would receive a final score of 60.
Again, an applicant’s score is used to determine if an applicant is eligible for a grant; it does not determine the amount of funding. Grant applicants are required to receive a minimum score of 60 to be eligible for a grant. If an applicant receives a score of 60 or above, the applicant is eligible for a grant, but the amount of grant funding is determined by the GSPP funding formula described below. An applicant that receives a score of 59 or below is not eligible for a grant.
A high-priority LEA is defined in Education Code Section 53022(a):
(a) “High-priority local educational agency” means a local educational agency that meets any of the following criteria:
(1) Fifty percent or more of the enrolled pupils at the local educational agency are unduplicated pupils, as defined in EC Section 42238.02.
(2) The local educational agency has a higher than state average dropout rate.
(3) The local educational agency has a higher than state average rate of suspension and a higher than state average rate of expulsion.
(4) The local educational agency has higher than state average rates of child homelessness, foster youth, or justice-involved youth.
(5) The local educational agency has a lower than state average rate of pupils completing all of the A–G courses required to be eligible for admission to the University of California or the California State University.
Question #3: How are GSPP grant amounts calculated?
Answer #3: The California Department of Education (CDE) received a high number of GSPP applications for a limited amount of funding ($475 million). While the funding formula aims to fund as many grants as possible, given the limited amount of funding, not all applicants will receive the amount of funding requested. An LEA will not receive a funding amount beyond the amount requested.
As explained in Answer #2 above, the GSPP scoring process uses a rubric to evaluate each application solely for the purpose of determining grant eligibility (but not funding amount). Once grant eligibility is established, all of the following are considered in calculating an LEA’s grant amount(s):
(1) The number of pupils enrolled by the applicant.
(2) The number of pathways programs proposed to be established or expanded by the applicant and the number of schoolsites that would participate in the pathways program.
(3) The estimated number of pupils that would be enrolled in the applicant’s pathways programs.
(4) The number of entities collaborating with the applicant to achieve the goal outlined in subdivision (a) of EC Section 53021.
(Education Code Section 53025(c).)
Please note that (2) above includes the number of pathways programs proposed to be established or expanded by the applicant and the number of schoolsites that would participate in the pathways program.
The CDE has reviewed grant applications to double-check the data used to calculate grant amounts. In addition, the CDE is working diligently to ensure there are grant funds available not only for current implementation grantees (although future grant qualification results may be different), but also sufficient funds available to allow successful planning grantees to later apply for their own implementation grant(s).
Question #4: Why did the CDE revoke the May 31, 2024, grant qualification results?
Answer #4: After the CDE posted the grant qualification results on May 31, 2024, the CDE received 75 appeals. The nature of the appeals prompted the CDE to examine the grant funding process. On July 16, 2024, the CDE removed the May 31, 2024, grant qualification results from its website, as indicated in the July 16, 2024, errata. Removing the grant qualification results invalidated those results; future results may be the same or different.
During its examination of the grant funding process, the CDE realized that the May 31, 2024, grant qualification results had not taken into account the need to hold back/reserve grant funds for successful planning grantees who may later want to apply for their own implementation grant(s). Failure to hold back/reserve implementation grant funds was inconsistent with the CDE’s communications to the field that indicated such funds would be available to planning grantees. In addition, the CDE found that some of the grant qualification results posted on May 31, 2024, were calculated incorrectly.
Question #5: When will the revised grant qualification results be posted?
Answer #5: The CDE will post the revised grant qualification results by September 20, 2024.
Question #6: Will applicants be able to appeal the revised grant qualification results?
Answer #6: Yes. As set forth in the RFA, appeals shall be limited to the grounds that the CDE failed to correctly apply the standards for reviewing the application as specified in the RFA. An applicant who scored less than 60 on their application may appeal their grant eligibility determination (based on an applicant’s score on the rubric). An applicant determined eligible for grant funding may appeal their grant qualification results (the revised grant qualification results, not the May 31, 2024, grant qualification results). The appellant must file a full and complete written appeal, including the issue(s) in dispute, the legal authority or other basis for the appeal position, and the remedy sought. The CDE will not consider incomplete or late appeals. The appellant may not supply any new information that was not originally contained in the original application. The CDE will make the final decision in writing within three weeks of the date that appeals are due to CDE. That decision shall be the final administrative action afforded the appeal. All appeal decisions will be made prior to the final approval of the grants.


Applicants who wish to appeal a grant award decision must email a letter of appeal to:
GSPP@cde.ca.gov; Subject line: GSPP Grant Appeals
The CDE must receive a digital copy of the signed letter of appeal from an authorized applicant no later than ten (10) business days after the day of the grant announcement. Faxed letters will not be accepted.
As explained above, the CDE will make the final decision in writing within three weeks of the date that appeals are due to CDE. That decision shall be the final administrative action afforded the appeal. All appeal decisions will be made prior to the final approval of the grants.
[bookmark: _Hlk176459289]Question #7: Will applicants receive their scores on the RFA scoring rubric?
Answer #7: Yes. This will allow applicants to see how their application was scored.  Applicants who scored less than 60 may appeal if they believe the CDE failed to score their application correctly using the scoring rubric, high-priority factors and other standards set forth in the RFA.
Question #8: Will applicants receive information about how their revised grant qualification result(s) was calculated?
Answer #8: Yes. This will allow applicants to see how their grant qualification result(s) was calculated. The CDE will post the funding formula used to calculate grant qualification results on the same day the revised grant qualification results are posted. In addition, the CDE will provide applicants with the data used to determine the applicant’s grant qualification results (Q&A #3 discusses grant award calculations). Applicants who believe their grant qualification results are incorrect may appeal if they believe the CDE failed to calculate their grant qualification results correctly using the funding formula and other standards set forth in the RFA.
Question #9: Will applicants’ revised grant qualification results differ from the grant qualification results posted on May 31, 2024?
Answer #9: As noted in Answer #4, following the receipt of the 75 appeals, the CDE realized that the May 31, 2024, grant qualification results had not taken into account the need to hold back/reserve grant funds for successful planning grantees who may be eligible for future implementation grant(s). In addition, the CDE found that some of the grant qualification results posted on May 31, 2024, were incorrectly calculated. Accounting for these issues will likely result in different grant awards for some applicants.


Question #10: Will planning grant award recipients who did not also apply for implementation grants be eligible for future implementation grants?
Answer #10: Yes, however, the receipt of an implementation grant is not automatic. Rather, a planning grantee must demonstrate (1) successful completion of the GSPP Planning Grant; and (2) submission of an End of Project Report, including a separate budget and budget narrative (appendix F2) for the GSPP Implementation Grant.
Question #11: Will applicants who received both a planning grant and an implementation grant(s) be eligible for a future implementation grant for those pathways listed in the planning grant application (and are not duplicative of pathways for which an applicant has received implementation grant funding)?
Answer #11: Yes, however, the receipt of an implementation grant is not automatic. Rather, a planning grantee must demonstrate (1) successful completion of the GSPP Planning Grant; and (2) submission of an End of Project Report, including a separate budget and budget narrative (appendix F2) for the GSPP Implementation Grant. In addition, the implementation grant must be for the pathway(s) listed in the planning grant application.
